
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

May 03, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 03, 2021 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

May 03, 2021 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Marc O'Neal - Camden United Methodist Church 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. New Personnel Introductions - Ken Bowman 

B. Tourism Development Authority - Sarah Hill 

C. Economic Improvement Council - Dr. Landon Mason 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 03, 2021 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

B. Camden County Board of Elections - Purchase of Voting Equipment 

C. Termination of COVID-19 State of Emergency - Ken Bowman 

D. Avery Shores Rezoning Request - Amber Curling 

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council 

B. Tourism Development Authority 

C. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2021 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - April 5, 2021 

C. Budget Amendments 

D. School Budget Amendments 

E. Tax Collection Report 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

G. Refunds Over $100.00 

H. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

I. Estimated Property Values 

J. 2020-2021 Audit Contracts 

K. JCPC Funding Plan / Certification 

L. Visitor Center Funding Agreement 

M. Proclamation - Older Americans Month 

N. Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendments 160D 

O. Set Public Hearing - 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Program 

P. Set Public Hearing - FY 2021-2022 Budget 

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 03, 2021 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Board Report 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   New Personnel Introductions - Ken Bowman 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Mr. Bowman will introduce two new employees: 

Morgan Potts, Planning Director 

Charles Jones, Public Works Manager 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.B 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority - Sarah Hill 

 

Attachments: Camden TDA- NTTW 2021 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Sarah Hill with the Tourism Development Authority will give a presentation on Travel & 

Tourism Week. 

4.B

Packet Pg. 6



National Travel & Tourism Week 4.B.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



National Travel and Tourism Week (NTTW) 2021
recognizes the POWER OF TRAVEL and the industry’s role
in bringing back our vibrant communities, restoring the
U.S. economy, rebuilding our workforce and reconnecting
America.

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



Dismal Swamp State Park
4.B.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



Visitation 

Highway Visitation to Facility/Rest Area: 595,842          559,816
Dismal Swamp State Park Visitation:        207,879 201,327
Dismal Swamp Canal Boating:  988 710

(average 1,500)

2019 2020

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



NC Tourism Economic Facts

North Carolina remains the sixth most-visited state
with 48 million people visiting in 2019. Tourism
generated record visitor spending of $26.8 billion, or
$73 million per day. This spending adds $5.92 million
per day to state and local tax revenues. The tourism
industry-supported employment topped 236,000 jobs
to set another record for the state.

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



#Power of  Travel

Each NC household saves on average $551 in state and local
taxes as a direct result of visitor spending in the state.

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



Celebrating #NTTW21
• Press Release
• Social Media 
• Spotlight Small Businesses 

& Attractions
• Connect with community & 

local/regional partners
• Promo cookie packs                           

with tourism facts

#PowerofTravel #VisitCamdenNC

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

- 
N

T
T

W
 2

02
1 

 (
29

84
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 -

 S
ar

ah



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.C 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Economic Improvement Council - Dr. Landon Mason 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Dr. Landon Mason from Economic Improvement Council will present the annual report. 

4.C

Packet Pg. 14



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   March Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: Mar2021 monthly report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  March Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

5.A

Packet Pg. 15



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
20

21
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
29

90
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Elaine Best, Board of Elections Director 

 Board of Elections 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County Board of Elections - Purchase of Voting 

Equipment 

 

Attachments: Board of Elections Voting Equipment Purchase (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The Camden County Board of Elections is seeking to purchase new components of certified 

voting equipment.  The BOE requests using HAVA Subgrant Funds in the amount of $30,742, 

Center for Tech and Civic Life Grant Funds in the amount of $921.06 with remaining funds 

coming from existing 2020-2021 fiscal year budget.  The total purchase price is $33,169.00.   

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 23



5.B.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
E

le
ct

io
n

s 
V

o
ti

n
g

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
P

u
rc

h
as

e 
 (

29
88

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

E
le

ct
io

n
s 

- 
P

u
rc

h
as

e 
o

f 
V

o
ti

n
g

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t)



5.B.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
E

le
ct

io
n

s 
V

o
ti

n
g

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
P

u
rc

h
as

e 
 (

29
88

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

E
le

ct
io

n
s 

- 
P

u
rc

h
as

e 
o

f 
V

o
ti

n
g

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Termination of State of Emergency 

 

Attachments: Termination of SOE_COVID (DOCX) 

 

5.C

Packet Pg. 26



 
 

TERMINATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY 

CAMDEN COUNTY, NC 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Statute 166A-19.22, a local State of Emergency can be implemented 

when a natural/man-made disaster or public health emergency is approaching or has affected an area to 

ensure resources, supplies, and personnel are easily accessible to aid in the emergency response during an 

event. Pursuant to General Statute 166A-19.31, a local State of Emergency can also include local 

restrictions and prohibitions to ensure the safety of the public; and 

 

WHEREAS, the local State of Emergency was put into effect on March 17, 2020 without restrictions or 

prohibitions for the COVID-19 pandemic to aid in receiving supplies, additional personnel, and other 

resources necessary to assist with the Public Safety response to COVID-related emergencies in our area 

of responsibility; and 

 

WHEREAS, with the introduction of the COVID vaccines in our jurisdictions in January 2021 through 

Albemarle Regional Health Services and a State-sponsored clinic at Elizabeth City State University along 

with the public’s adherence to the State restrictions, we are able to move from a response phase to a 

recovery phase; and 

 

WHEREAS, although our local State of Emergency for COVID-19 will be ending, the Executive Orders 

enacted by Governor Roy Cooper remain in effect and enforceable throughout the State of NC. Therefore, 

all residents will need to continue to follow the latest guidance and restrictions as set forth in the 

Executive Orders such as wearing masks/face coverings, social distancing, restrictions on mass 

gatherings, restrictions on occupancy for businesses, etc. Additional information on restrictions and 

updated Executive Orders can be obtained from the following: 

 

https://www.nc.gov/covid-19/staying-ahead-curve#lifting-additional-restrictions 

 

https://www.nc.gov/covid-19/covid-19-orders-directives 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, we hereby terminate the above referenced declaration of a State of Emergency and 

all the restrictions and orders contained therein. 

 

THIS declaration is effective at 8:00 AM on May 4, 2021. 

 

DECLARED this the 3rd day of May 2021 by the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 

 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

             

Ross Munro, Vice-Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

S
O

E
_C

O
V

ID
  (

29
89

 :
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 -

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9)

https://www.nc.gov/covid-19/staying-ahead-curve#lifting-additional-restrictions
https://www.nc.gov/covid-19/covid-19-orders-directives


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.D 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Avery Shores Rezoning Request 

 

Attachments: 20210503_AgendaSummary_AveryRezoning

 (DOCX) 

1_StaffReport_AverytRezoning (PDF) 

2_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication (PDF) 

3_SitePlan (PDF) 

4_Zoning Comparision PD & WL to SR (PDF) 

5_NeighborhoodMeetingInformation (PDF) 

6_Deed (PDF) 

8_CAMA_LUP Amendment Resolution (DOC) 

OrdinanceForAveryRezoning_2021_04_05

 (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary, supporting documentation and Planning Board recommendation attached. 

5.D

Packet Pg. 28



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   May 3, 2021 

 

Attachments:    Avery Shores Rezoning Staff Findings, Application, Site Plan, Zoning 

Comparison, Neighborhood Meeting Summary, Deed, Resolution to amend 

CAMA Land Use Map 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Zoning Map Amendment from Avery Family Rev. Trust 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Avery Family Rev. Trust has requested a map amendment for approximately 52 acres from Planned 

Development (PD) and 37 acres from Working Lands to Suburban Residential (SR).  Both parcels are 

located off One Mill Rd and Riggs Rd in the Shiloh Township.   

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on December 9, 2020.  On January 20, 2021, the Planning Board 

recommends approval of the rezoning request with a 6-0 vote. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has the majority of property identified as Conservation. 

 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which shows the current Planned Development Zoning Parcel to be Village Mixed Use. 

 

A Public Hearing was held at the April 5, 2021 Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners.  The 

Board voted 5-0 to table a decision until the May 3, 2021 Regular Meeting. 

 

 

Recommendations:   

 

Motion to approve Consistency Statement: 

 

The requested zoning change is consistent with Comprehensive Future Land Use Maps that reflect 

allowing higher density residential development in targeted areas of the County.   The requested zoning 

change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan which identifies the majority of the 

property as Conservation.   

 

If rezoning is approved CAMA requires an approval of a Resolution to the CAMA Future Land Use 

Map. 

 

Motion to approve: 

 

Motion to approve the Ordinance 2021-03-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2020-12-14) for the two 

parcels of property, approximately 52 acres and 37 acres from Planned Development (PD), Working 

Lands (WL) and a Rural Residential (RR); to Suburban Residential (SR); and to approve the resolution 

amending CAMA Future Land Use Map. 

 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
10

50
3_

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

A
ve

ry
R

ez
o

n
in

g
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



Reasonableness Statement for approval: 

 

The requested rezoning is consistent with 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan and is 
supported in the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan policy: “P.3 - Camden County supports the 

frequency of shoreline access as defined by 15A NCAC 7M, Section .0300, Shorefront Access 

Policies.  However, emphasis will be placed on providing access to the Great Dismal Swamp and 

the Shiloh Township area.”   
 

Motion for denial: 

 

Motion to deny the Ordinance 2021-03-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2020-12-14) for the two parcels 

of property, approximately 52 acres and 37 acres from Planned Development (PD), Working Lands 

(WL) and a Rural Residential (RR) to Suburban Residential (SR). 

 

Reasonableness Statement for denial: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

identifies the majority of the property as Conservation.      

 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
10

50
3_

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

A
ve

ry
R

ez
o

n
in

g
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



` 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO 2020-12-14 

 Zoning Map Amendment for Avery Property 
 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference: UDO 2020-12-14 

Project Name:           Avery Shores 

PIN:    03-8971-00-21-2552 

   03-8971-00-30-0834 

 

Applicant:                 Avery Family Rev. Trust 

Address:  102 Avery Dr 

                         Shiloh, NC 27974 

 Phone:  252-455-1028 

 Email:  sbrad11@gmail.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:  Self  

 Address:             

 Phone:    

 Fax:   

 Email:     

 

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

12/9/2020  Neighborhood Meeting 

1/20/2021  Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: 12/10/2020 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $1440.00 Ck# 1 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Site Plan 

C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use and CAMA Land Use 

Plan Suitability Maps 

D. Zoning Comparison PD & WL to SR 

E. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

F. Deed 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

REQUEST:  Zoning Map Amendment from Planned Development, Working Lands, and Rural 

Residential to Suburban Residential.   

 

Rezone two parcels; first parcel 03-8971-00-30-0834-0000 of approximately 52 acres from Planned 

Development (PD) and second parcel 03-8971-00-21-2552-0000 of approximately 37 acres from 

Working Lands (WL) and a Rural Residential fragment (RR) to Suburban Residential (SR).  All parcels 

are located off One Mill Rd and Riggs Rd in the Shiloh Township. 

  

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Rezoning from the following Zoning District:   

Planned Development (PD) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.6.3) 

The Planned Development (PD) district is established and intended to encourage innovative land 

planning and site design concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of 

development, environmental sensitivity, energy efficiency, and other County goals and objectives by: 

• Reducing or diminishing inflexibility or uniform design that sometimes results from the strict 

application of zoning and development standards designed primarily for individual lots; 

• Allowing greater freedom in selecting the means of providing access, open space, and design 

amenities; 

• Allowing greater freedom in providing a well-integrated mix of residential and nonresidential 

land uses in the same development, including a mix of housing types, lot sizes, and densities; 

• Providing for efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets and 

thereby lowering development and housing costs; and 

• Promoting quality design and environmentally sensitive development that respects surrounding 

established land use character and respects and takes advantage of a site’s natural and man-made 

features, such as trees, estuaries, shorelines, special flood hazard area, and historic features. 

 

Working Lands (WL) Purpose Statement Article 151.3.5.2) 

The Working Lands (WL) district is established to accommodate agriculture, agriculturally-related uses, 

and limited forms residential development at very low densities in rural portions of the County.  The 

district is primarily intended to preserve and protect bona fide farms and resource lands for current or 

future agricultural use as well as to protect the rural character of the area.  One of the primary tools for 

character protection is the requirement to configure residential subdivisions of more than five lots as 

conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach seeks to minimize the visibility of 

new residential development from adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening, and 

allows farmers to capture a portion of the land’s development potential while continuing to farm.  

Conservation subdivisions allow a portion of a tract or site to be developed with single-family detached 

homes while the balance of the site is left as conservation or agricultural land.  The district also 

accommodates a wide range of agricultural and agricultural-related uses like “agri-tourism” as well as 

service and support uses to the rural community, including day care, educational uses, public safety 

facilities, parks, and utility features. 

 

  

Rezoning to the following Zoning District: 

Suburban Residential (SR) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.5.5) 

The Suburban Residential (SR) district is the County’s primary district for suburban residential 

neighborhoods located along primary roadways, shoreline areas, and in locations bordering rural areas.  

The district has a one-acre minimum lot area requirement, which is the basic threshold size for lots with 

on-site wastewater systems.  Use of the conservation subdivision configuration is optional for residential 

subdivisions.  While the district allows single-family detached homes, mobile homes on individual lots 

are prohibited. Nonconforming mobile homes may remain but may not be expanded or replaced with 

another mobile home. The district accommodates equestrian uses, utilities, as well as various 

neighborhood-supporting institutional uses such as parks, schools, and public safety facilities.  District 

regulations discourage uses that interfere with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are 

detrimental to the suburban nature of the district 

 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

 

SITE DATA 
 

Size of Lots:   Approximately 52 and 37 acres for an approximate total of 89 acres 

Flood Zone:   AE 

Zoning District(s):  Planned Development (PD), Working Lands (WL) and  Rural Residential  

    (RR) 

Existing Land Uses:  Farmland 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Working Lands (WL) Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Working Lands (WL) Pasquotank 

River 

Use & size Wetlands & Farmland 

 

Residential Lots, 

Woods, Farmland 

Residential Lots,  

Wetlands & Farmland 

NA 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is to develop 61waterfront lots, creating the Conservation 

Subdivide of Avery Shores. 

 

Description/History of property:  The vacant property is located in southern portion of Shiloh off 

Riggs Road and One Mill Road.   Majority of the property has been used as farmland; the remaining is 

wetlands and woods. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along One Mill Road and Riggs Road 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  Shiloh Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning will have an impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning will have impact on Traffic.  A Traffic Impact Analysis required at   

  development stage. 

  

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

PROJECT LOCATION:  Vicinity Map:  Shiloh Township 

 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 

Planned 

Development 

Rural 

Residential 

Neighborhood 

Residential 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 

Low Land Suitability 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Watershed Map  

 

Not located in Watershed 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Wetlands Map  

 

Wetland

s 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Floodplain Map                      

  

Located mainly in the AE Flood Zone 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT:  Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:     

Distance & description of nearest outfall:    It appears the property drains to Pasquotank River. 

 

Pasquotank River 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 

Rural 

Preservation 

Rural Residential 1 to 2 acre 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

  
  

Low Density Residential 

On 1-2 acres or greater Medium 

 Density  

Residential 

Conservation 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

   

Water is available 

 

4 inch Water Line 

3 inch Water Line 

2 inch Water Line 

3 inch Water Line 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

   
  

Avery Property 

Shiloh 1 mile 

Buffer 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

The goal when reviewing a project for Zoning Regulations in accordance with the Camden County Land 

Use Plans is to make sure the project is designed to: 

• to lessen congestion in the streets;  

• to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 

• to promote health and the general welfare; 

• to provide adequate light and air;  

• to prevent the overcrowding of land; 

• to avoid undue concentration of population; and  

• to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools parks and other 

public requirements 

 

Summary 

 
CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

   

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the current Planned 

Development Zoning Parcel to be Village Mixed Use.  Village Mixed use areas include moderate to 

higher density mixed use including residential, commercial, and recreational uses.  The Working Lands 

are shown on the Future Land Use map as Rural Preservation.  Rural Preservation promotes the 

continued use of working lands and protection of environmentally sensitive lands from more intense 

development.   

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Conservation.  Small areas on the water are identified as Low Density 

Residential.  Conservation is designated to provide for effective long term management of significant 

limited or irreplaceable areas. 

  

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

The Camden County Comprehensive Transportation Plan does not identify any roads as needing 

improvement or recommended for improvement south of Wharf Rd on Hwy 343 south. 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

  

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

In Camden County 0.63% is zoned as Planned Development, 72.95% is zoned as Working Lands and 

1.79% of the property is zoned as Suburban Residential. 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses?   

There is very limited waterfront property left to be developed. 

 

3.  Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification more appropriate than the 

range of uses in the existing classification? 

The range of uses between Planned Development, Working Lands and Suburban Residential are similar.    

Planned Development may allow for commercial development not allowed in other two districts and the 

proposed density is established upon approval of Masterplan.  Suburban Residential allows for higher 

density than Working Lands.  The Zoning Comparison, included in the package, identifies specific uses 

for each zoning district.  

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities?   

The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public facilities.  The Preliminary Plat Application 

will require a Development Impact Statement.  The Development Impact Statement is determined by the 

Physical Analysis, Housing Market Analysis Water Analysis, Sewer Analysis, Fiscal Analysis and 

Traffic Analysis. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public services.  The specific service and to what 

extent the impact will be projected during the development approval process of the property, using 

recommendations from the Technical Review Committee. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result, as proposed, will result in 

lessening the enjoyment or use of adjacent properties?   

All permitted uses in the requested zoning classification should not lessen the enjoyment or use of any 

adjacent properties. 

 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, odors, light 

activity, or unusual disturbances. 

 

 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

The request does not raise serious legal questions. 

 

 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



` 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes the proposed development includes areas of environmental concern.  Concerns are flood zone AE, 

wetlands, and the waterfront.  The development process will include the required documentation for 

Federal, State and County; (CAMA permit, NCDEQ Erosion & Sediment Control permit, NCDEQ 

Stormwater permit, Approved County drainage plan, and any other appropriate approvals.) 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Planning Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Application (UDO 2020- 12-14) of the Avery 

parcels on One Mill Rd and Riggs Road from Planned Development, Working Lands, and Rural 

Residential to Suburban Residential.  This recommendation is based on the 2035 Comprehensive Plan 

which identifies: (1) 52 acres as Village Mixed Use with an appropriate specific use as moderate and 

higher density residential uses (up to 14 dwellings units per acre); (2) 37 acres as Rural Preservation 

with appropriate uses of farms and forestry sites. 

  

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
_A

ve
ry

tR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



5.D.c

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



N
C

 
G

R
I
D

 
N

A
D

 
8

3
 
(
2

0
1

1
)

O

P

E

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

O

P

E

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

P

A

S

Q

U

O

T

A

N

K

 

R

I

V

E

R

R

I

G

G

S

 

R

O

A

D

O

N

E

 

M

I

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

0

SCALE 1"=200'

400'200'

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

O

P

E

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

O

P

E

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

BOAT BASIN

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

45

44

43

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

C

A
N

A
L

5.D.d

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_S
it

eP
la

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)

jason.mizelle
Preliminary



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRPD

Agricultural
AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE

All	Agriculture/	Horticulture	Uses A P

ANIMAL	HUSBANDRY

Animal	Husbandry	Uses	(excluding	stockyards	and	slaughterhouses)

Stockyard/Slaughterhouse

AGRICULTURAL	SUPPORT

Agricultural	Research	Facility P

Agri‐Education/	Agri‐Entertainment A

Distribution	Hub	for	Agriculture	Products A

Equestrian	Facility A S

Farm	Machinery	Sales,	Rental,	or	Service A

Farmers	Market A

Roadside	Market A

Residential
HOUSEHOLD	LIVING	USES

Bungalow	Court A

Duplex A

Live/Work	Dwelling A

Manufactured	Home A

Manufactured	Home	or	Mobile	Home	Park

Mobile	Home

Multi‐Family A

Pocket	Neighborhood A

Quadraplex A

Single‐Family	Attached A

Single‐Family	Detached A P

Triplex A

Upper	Story	Residential A

GROUP	LIVING

Dormitory A

Family	Care	Home A P

Group	Home A

Rooming	House A

Page	1	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRPD

Institutional
COMMUNITY	SERVICES

Community	Center A

Cultural	Facility A

Library A

Museum A

Senior	Center A

Youth	Club	Facility A

DAY	CARE

Adult	Day	Care	Center A

Child	Care	Center A

EDUCATIONAL	FACILITIES

Major A

Moderate A

Minor A S

GOVERNMENT	FACILITIES

Government	Office A

Government	Maintenance,	Storage,	or	Distribution	Facility A

HEALTH	CARE	FACILITIES

Drug	or	Alcohol	Treatment	Facility A

Hospital `

Medical	Treatment	Facility A

INSTITUTIONS

Assisted	Living	Facility A

Club	or	Lodge A

Halfway	House

Nursing	Home A

Psychiatric	Treatment	Facility

Religious	Institution A

PARKS	AND	OPEN	AREAS

Cemetery A S

Community	Garden A P

Park,	Public	or	Private A S

Page	2	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRPD

PUBLIC	SAFETY

Police,	Fire,	or	EMS	Facility A S

Correctional	Facility

Security	Training	Facility

TRANSPORTATION

Airport A

Helicopter	Landing	Facility A

Passenger	Terminal,	Surface	Transportation A

UTILITIES

Utility,	Major A S

Utility,	Minor A P

Commercial
ADULT	AND	SEXUALLY‐ORIENTED	BUSINESSES

All	Adult	and	Sexually‐Oriented	Businesses

ANIMAL	CARE

Major A

Minor A

EATING	ESTABLISHMENTS

Restaurant,	Major A

Restaurant,	Minor A

Bar,	Nightclub,	or	Dance	Hall A

OFFICES

Major A

Minor A

PARKING,	COMMERCIAL

All A

PERSONAL	SERVICES

Major A

Minor A

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT,	INDOOR

Major A

Minor A

Page	3	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRPD

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT,	OUTDOOR

Major A

Minor A

Firing	Range

Water‐Related	Uses A

RETAIL	SALES

Flea	Market A

Grocery	Store A

Major A

Minor A

STORAGE,	COMMERCIAL

Major A

Minor A

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Antenna	Collocation	(on	a	Building) A

Antenna	Collocation	(on	a	Tower) A

Small	Wireless	Facility A

Telecommunications	Tower,	Freestanding A

Telecommunications	Tower,	Stealth A P

VEHICLE	ESTABLISHMENT

Major A

Minor A

VISITOR	ACCOMMODATIONS

Bed	and	Breakfast A

Campground A

Hotel	or	Motel A

Industrial
EXTRACTIVE	INDUSTRY

All

INDUSTRIAL	SERVICES

Contractor	Service A

Crabshedding

Fuel	Oil	or	Bottled	Gas	Distributor

General	Industrial	Service	and	Repair A

Heavy	Equipment	Sales,	Rental,	or	Service A

Research	and	Development A

Page	4	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRPD

MANUFACTURING	AND	PRODUCTION

Manufacturing,	Heavy A

Manufacturing,	Light A

POWER	GENERATION

Solar	Array A S

Wind	Energy	Conversion	Facility A

WAREHOUSE	AND	FREIGHT	MOVEMENT

All A

WASTE‐RELATED	SERVICES

Incinerator

Land	Application	of	Sludge/Septage

Landfill

Public	Convenience	Center	or	Transfer	Station

Recycling	Center A

Salvage	or	Junkyard

Waste	Composting	Facility

WHOLESALE	SALES

Major A

Minor A

Page	5	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRWL

Agricultural
AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE

All	Agriculture/	Horticulture	Uses P P

ANIMAL	HUSBANDRY

Animal	Husbandry	Uses	(excluding	stockyards	and	slaughterhouses) P

Stockyard/Slaughterhouse

AGRICULTURAL	SUPPORT

Agricultural	Research	Facility P

Agri‐Education/	Agri‐Entertainment P

Distribution	Hub	for	Agriculture	Products P

Equestrian	Facility P S

Farm	Machinery	Sales,	Rental,	or	Service S

Farmers	Market P

Roadside	Market P

Residential
HOUSEHOLD	LIVING	USES

Bungalow	Court

Duplex

Live/Work	Dwelling S

Manufactured	Home P

Manufactured	Home	or	Mobile	Home	Park

Mobile	Home

Multi‐Family

Pocket	Neighborhood

Quadraplex

Single‐Family	Attached

Single‐Family	Detached P P

Triplex

Upper	Story	Residential

GROUP	LIVING

Dormitory

Family	Care	Home P P

Group	Home S

Rooming	House S

Page	1	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRWL

Institutional
COMMUNITY	SERVICES

Community	Center

Cultural	Facility

Library

Museum

Senior	Center

Youth	Club	Facility

DAY	CARE

Adult	Day	Care	Center

Child	Care	Center P

EDUCATIONAL	FACILITIES

Major

Moderate S

Minor P S

GOVERNMENT	FACILITIES

Government	Office P

Government	Maintenance,	Storage,	or	Distribution	Facility S

HEALTH	CARE	FACILITIES

Drug	or	Alcohol	Treatment	Facility

Hospital

Medical	Treatment	Facility S

INSTITUTIONS

Assisted	Living	Facility

Club	or	Lodge S

Halfway	House

Nursing	Home

Psychiatric	Treatment	Facility

Religious	Institution S

PARKS	AND	OPEN	AREAS

Cemetery S S

Community	Garden P P

Park,	Public	or	Private P S

Page	2	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRWL

PUBLIC	SAFETY

Police,	Fire,	or	EMS	Facility S S

Correctional	Facility

Security	Training	Facility

TRANSPORTATION

Airport S

Helicopter	Landing	Facility S

Passenger	Terminal,	Surface	Transportation

UTILITIES

Utility,	Major P S

Utility,	Minor P P

Commercial
ADULT	AND	SEXUALLY‐ORIENTED	BUSINESSES

All	Adult	and	Sexually‐Oriented	Businesses

ANIMAL	CARE

Major S

Minor P

EATING	ESTABLISHMENTS

Restaurant,	Major

Restaurant,	Minor

Bar,	Nightclub,	or	Dance	Hall

OFFICES

Major

Minor

PARKING,	COMMERCIAL

All

PERSONAL	SERVICES

Major

Minor

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT,	INDOOR

Major

Minor

Page	3	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRWL

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT,	OUTDOOR

Major S

Minor S

Firing	Range S

Water‐Related	Uses S

RETAIL	SALES

Flea	Market

Grocery	Store

Major

Minor

STORAGE,	COMMERCIAL

Major

Minor

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Antenna	Collocation	(on	a	Building)

Antenna	Collocation	(on	a	Tower) P

Small	Wireless	Facility P

Telecommunications	Tower,	Freestanding S

Telecommunications	Tower,	Stealth P P

VEHICLE	ESTABLISHMENT

Major

Minor

VISITOR	ACCOMMODATIONS

Bed	and	Breakfast P

Campground S

Hotel	or	Motel

Industrial
EXTRACTIVE	INDUSTRY

All S

INDUSTRIAL	SERVICES

Contractor	Service

Crabshedding

Fuel	Oil	or	Bottled	Gas	Distributor

General	Industrial	Service	and	Repair

Heavy	Equipment	Sales,	Rental,	or	Service

Research	and	Development

Page	4	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



Use	Class	/	Main	Category	/	Category "P"=Permitted,	"S"=Special	Use	Permit,	Blank=Prohibited

Camden	County,	North	Carolina
Principal	Use	Table,	District	Comparison

SRWL

MANUFACTURING	AND	PRODUCTION

Manufacturing,	Heavy

Manufacturing,	Light

POWER	GENERATION

Solar	Array S S

Wind	Energy	Conversion	Facility S

WAREHOUSE	AND	FREIGHT	MOVEMENT

All

WASTE‐RELATED	SERVICES

Incinerator

Land	Application	of	Sludge/Septage

Landfill

Public	Convenience	Center	or	Transfer	Station S

Recycling	Center S

Salvage	or	Junkyard

Waste	Composting	Facility S

WHOLESALE	SALES

Major

Minor

Page	5	of	5

5.D.e

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
 P

D
 &

 W
L

 t
o

 S
R

  (
29

97
 :

 A
ve

ry
 S

h
o

re
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

A
m

b
er

 C
u

rl
in

g
)



  

 

 

ENGINEERING  |   DESIGN  |   TECHNOLOGY  

1805 West City Drive 

Unit E 

Elizabeth City, NC 27909 

 

P 252.621.5030 

F 252.562.6974 

www.timmons.com 

 

November 23, 2020 

 

RE: Proposed Rezoning 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

You are receiving this notice because you own property near a parcel of land proposed for rezoning.  The 

proposed rezoning will result in one parcel being rezoned from Planned Development and another parcel 

from Working Lands to both being rezoned to Suburban Residential.  

A community meeting has been scheduled for Wednesday, December 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm in the upstairs 

courtroom of the Historic Camden County Courthouse.  At the meeting, the project will be presented to 

the community and you will have an opportunity to provide comments to the applicant and Camden 

County. 

If you are unable to attend the meeting or would like to discuss the project prior to the meeting, please 

feel free to contact me at the phone number above.  

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
  
 
 
Jason Mizelle, PLS 

 

 

 

 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



Parcel Proposed for Rezoning 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



ABODE OF CAMDEN, INC 

187 THOMAS POINT ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

AKBJ, LLC 

1381 S HWY 343 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

MARSHALL BURGESS 

1051 CHESWICK ROAD 

RICHMOND VA 23235 

 

JOHN & BRENDA COCHRAN 

187 A THOMAS POINT ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

LINDA & ROBERT DENNY 

217 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

DEMPSEY FORBES 

235 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

REGGIE FORBES 

213 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

WILLARD FORBES 

C/O THELMA FORBES 

2012 STERLING POINT DRIVE 

PORTSMOUTH VA 23703 

 

PATRICIA & JAMES HUMBLET 

106 AVERY DRIVE 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

SAMUEL LEARY, JR 

1151 WHITBURN TERRACE 

CHESAPEAKE VA 23322 

 

 

 

 

MELISSA MACKAY & 

GREGORY GRANLUND 

119 RIGGS ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

BONNIE RIGGS 

223 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

DWIGHT RIGGS & 

NANCY SWAIN 

700 ELDERBERRY COURT 

CHESAPEAKE VA 23320 

 

WILLIAM C. SARGENT JR 

2213 TULLS COVE RD 

WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

 

WILLIAM M. SARGENT   

203 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 6227 

 

NICHOLAS & CRYSTAL WILLIAMS 

211 ONE MILL ROAD 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

C/O AMBER CURLING 
CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PO BOX 74 

CAMDEN, NC 27921  

 

STEVEN BRADSHAW 

102 AVERY DRIVE 

SHILOH, NC 27974 

 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



 

 

ENGINEERING  |   DESIGN  |   TECHNOLOGY  

1805 West City Drive 

Unit E 

Elizabeth City, NC 27909 

 

 

P 252.621.5030 
F 252.562.6974 

www.timmons.com 

 

 
 
COMMUNITY MEETING REPORT FOR AVERY FAMILY TURST 

  

Project:  Rezoning 88.8-Acres on Riggs Road 
Facilitator: Jason Mizelle – Timmons Group 
Date & Time: December 9, 2020 @ 6:00 PM 
Location: Historic Camden Court House 
 
In preparation for the Community Meeting, eighteen notices were mailed out notifying the adjoining 
property owners & the County Staff about the meeting.  Five Camden residents attended, most of whom 
resided along the One Mill Road side of the project.  Also, in attendance were Amber Curling of the 
Camden County Planning Department, Steve Bradshaw & Preston Avery (applicants) as well as Jason 
Mizelle of Timmons Group. 

I opened the meeting with an explanation of the rezoning process and what specifically the applicants 
were looking to do with the property, if approved.  Having the meeting early in the review process gives 
the developer and the design professionals time to analyze comments, address concerns and possibly 
make changes.  I explained that we were at the very beginning of the process and there was a long way 
to go in order to see a project like this to fruition. 

Steve Bradshaw, one of the applicants, then reviewed in detail the thought process behind the type of 
development being sought and why the change from the PUD & Working Lands designations to 
Suburban Residential was more befitting of the property and its proximity to the water.  

Much of the question and answers with those in attendance centered around the timing of the project and 
when construction might commence. It was relayed that the project would likely not start construction for a 
year and even then it would be phased construction. 

Other items discussed were in relation to some of the current property use encroachments of the 
residences along One Mill Road and that it was the applicants desire to convey that portion of the parcel 
that would make up the area in use, so as to have those residents not have to relocate or modify any 
improvements made. It was explained that the sliver of land in question was not being included in our 
project limits or calculations. 

Mr. Bradshaw reviewed the concept plan in further detail to highlight the areas adjacent to the residents in 
attendance parcels and to discuss the hopes that the inclusion of canal connections to the river would aid 
in some of the drainage woes that were currently occurring in that area. 

The meeting was concluded at 7:00 pm as there were no further questions or discussion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Jason A. Mizelle, PLS 
Timmons Group 
 
 
Cc Camden County Planning 

5.D.f

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.D.f

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.D.g

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ee

d
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.D.g

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ee

d
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.D.g

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ee

d
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



5.D.g

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ee

d
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-04-01 

 

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE COASTAL AREA MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

CORE LAND USE PLAN 

 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to amend its 2005 CAMA Core Land Use Plan, specifically the 

Future Land Use Map, to designate approximately 82 acres of the Future Land Use Map from 

Conservation, to 82 acres to Low Density Residential to accommodate a rezoning request from Planned 

Development (PD), Working Lands (WL) and Rural Residential (RR) to Suburban Residential (SR) for 

development of a waterfront residential development; (Exhibit 1) and  

  

 WHEREAS, on January 21, 2021 the Planning Board unanimously recommended rezoning and 

related adoption of the draft amendment to the CAMA Core Land Use Plan; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the County conducted a duly advertised public hearing on the draft amendment to 

the CAMA Core Land Use Plan at the Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners on April 5, 2021; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the amendment to the Future Land Use Map has been evaluated for its consistency 

with other existing policies and no internal inconsistencies exist; and  

 

WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the currently approved North Carolina Coastal 

Management Program and the rules of the Coastal Resources Commission; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a review of the Implementation Policies indicates that this project and request is 

consistent with 25 of the Land Use Policies – specifically Policy 3 “Camden County supports the 

frequency of shoreline access as defined by 15A NCAC 7M, Section .0300, Shorefront Access Policies.  

However, emphasis will be placed on providing access to the Great Dismal Swamp and the Shiloh 

Township area.”; and  

 

WHEREAS, the amendment does not violate any state or federal laws. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Camden 

County, North Carolina, has adopted the draft CAMA Core Land Use Plan amendment to amend its 2005 

CAMA Core Land Use Plan, specifically the Future Land Use Map, to designate approximately 82 acres 

of the Future Land Use Map from Conservation to Low Density Residential; and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Manager of Camden County is hereby 

authorized to submit the adopted CAMA Core Land Use Plan amendment to the State for certification as 

described above. 

 

Adopted this 3rd day of May 2021. 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Ross Munro, Vice-Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

5.D.h

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_C
A

M
A

_L
U

P
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
  (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



 

Ordinance No. 2021-03-01 

An Ordinance  

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map  

Camden County, North Carolina 

Article I: Purpose 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 1993, 

and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended. 

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, is hereby 

amended as follows: 

The parcels of property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor's Office 

as PIN 03-8971-00-30-0834-0000 of approximately 52 acres from Planned Development 

(PD) and 03-8971-00-21-2552-0000, of approximately 37 acres from Working Lands (WL) 

and a Rural Residential (RR) to Suburban Residential (SR). 

Article III. Penalty 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its 

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established in 

connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, shall 

constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) dollars or a 

maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to comply 

with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards 

established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use 

Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of one-hundred ($100) dollars for 

each day the violation continues. If the offender fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days 

after being cited for a violation, the penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil 

action in the nature of debt. A civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of 

5.D.i

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rA
ve

ry
R

ez
o

n
in

g
_2

02
1_

04
_0

5 
 (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



Adjustment if the offender was sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 

151.568 and did not take an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that such 

violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the penalties and 

remedies specified in this section. 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be used to 

enforce this Ordinance. 

Article IV. Severability 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or 

other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language held to be invalid shall be 

affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

Article V. Effective Date 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 3rd day of May 

2021.   

 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Ross Munro, Vice-Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

5.D.i

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rA
ve

ry
R

ez
o

n
in

g
_2

02
1_

04
_0

5 
 (

29
97

 :
 A

ve
ry

 S
h

o
re

s 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
A

m
b

er
 C

u
rl

in
g

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council 

 

Attachments: Gwen Wescott - Regional Advisory Council (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of Albemarle Commission's Area Agency on Aging that Gwen Wescott be 

reappointed to the Regional Advisory Council for an additional term. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 73



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

w
en

 W
es

co
tt

 -
 R

eg
io

n
al

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  
(2

97
6 

: 
A

re
a 

A
g

en
cy

 o
n

 A
g

in
g

 R
eg

io
n

al
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

u
n

ci
l)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments: TDA- Volunteer Form- Michele Barkhurst (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Michele Barkhurst be appointed to the Tourism Development 

Authority. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 75



6.B.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

- 
V

o
lu

n
te

er
 F

o
rm

- 
M

ic
h

el
e 

B
ar

kh
u

rs
t 

 (
29

75
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Fatima Benson be reappointed to the Parks & Recreation Advisory 

Board for an additional term. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 77



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2021 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_040121 (DOCX) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 78



 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 1, 2021 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

2021-2022 CIP / Budget Work Session 

April 1, 2021; 1:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on April 1, 2021 at 1:00 PM at the 

Camden County Public Library. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 1:00 PM.  Additional Board members present: Vice 

Chairman Ross Munro, Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Clayton Riggs and Tiffney White.   

 

PRESENTATIONS 

The Board of Commissioners met with the following to discuss matters relating to the FY 2021-2022 Budget: 

A. Pasquotank – Camden EMS – Jerry Newell & Jamar Whitaker 

B. College of the Albemarle – Dr. Jack Bagwell 

C. Camden County Sheriff’s Office - Sheriff Kevin Jones 

D. Camden County Public Works – David Credle 

 

The following items were presented to the Board for discussion/direction; no official action was taken.   

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) UPDATE 

 

A. Approved / Funded 

1. Administration Complex (project underway - consensus to remove) 

2. Camden County High School (project underway - consensus to remove) 

3. Broadband Infrastructure (project underway – consensus to remove) 

B. Recommended / Unfunded 

1. Waste Water Expansion US 158 East from Hardee’s to Country Club Road (consensus to move to 

Approved / Funded) 

2. South Mills Waste Water Filtration Pond (consensus to remain as is) 

C. Identified / Unfunded 

1. Raw Water Well (consensus to move to Approved / Funded) 

2. US 158 Sidewalk Extension (consensus to move to Recommended / Unfunded) 

3. South Mills Boat Ramp and Park (consensus to remain as is) 

4. South Mills Waste Water Expansion and Disposal (consensus to move to Recommended / 

Unfunded) 

 

SCHOOL FUNDING 

 

A. Budget Request – The Superintendent is currently working on this for presentation on April 29th. 

B. School Current – 2020-2021 

1. County Appropriation - $2.6M 

2. Capital - $405k 

 

REQUESTED IT SOFTWARE/HARDWARE UPDATES 

A. Security Cameras and Monitor for Courthouse  

B. Keyless Entry System for the DSS Building  

 

INSURANCES, BENEFITS & PERSONNEL 

A. Benefits 

1. Health Increase – 1% ($5K) 

2. Employee Retirement (>1.2%) / Law Enforcement Retirement (1.2%) – Approx. Increase $10K 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

21
  (

29
70

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

02
1)



 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 1, 2021 

 

B. COLA 2% - $70,549  

1. Currently Salary - $3,531,690 

2. With Increase - $3,600,171 (includes step increases for those eligible) 

C. Property & Liability Increase – (>10%) – Approx. $9K 

D. Worker’s Comp (>5%) – Approx. $5K annual cost 

 

ADDITIONAL EXPENDITURES (Discussion only – no action taken) 

A. New High School 

1. Proposed Tax Increase for High School Debt Service - $.10 

2. Operational Costs - $0.01- $0.04 

B. Vehicles / Positions Requests 

1. Sheriff – 4 New Positions / Cruisers  

2. Sheriff – P/T Position for Animal Control  

3. Senior Center – Request Used 2017 14-passenger Coach  

4. DSS – Request Used SUV or Passenger Van 

C. Miscellaneous 

1. DSS – New office desks and chairs for staff  

D. Select Annual Appropriations 

1. College of the Albemarle 

2. Emergency Medical Services  

3. Emergency Management (combined with Central Communications) 

4. Museum 

5. Forestry 

6. Albemarle Food Bank 

7. Food Pantry 

8. M.L. King, Jr. Day 

9. Hopeline 

10. Albemarle District Jail 

11. Albemarle United Way 

12. SPCA 

13. Albemarle Regional Health 

14. Inter-County Public Transportation Authority (ICPTA) 

15. Friends of the Dismal Swamp  

16. Hwy 17 / 64 

17. Albemarle Resource Conservation & Development Council (ARC&D) 

 

REVENUES 

A. 2021-2022 Projections – None to date 

B. Fund Balances as of March 3, 2021 

1. Capital Reserve -  $2,337,582 

2. Unassigned -  $6,553,611 

 

Review of Department Budgets 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

• April 5, 2021; 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 

• April 29, 2021; 2:00 PM - Select Departments and Budget Review 

• May 3, 2021; 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 

• May 13, 2021; 6:00 PM – Budget Review 

• June 1, 2021; 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting / Public Hearing / Budget Adoption 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

21
  (

29
70

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

02
1)



 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 1, 2021 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

  

Chairman White adjourned the work session at 4:56 PM. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

       

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

21
  (

29
70

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

02
1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - April 5, 2021 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_040521 (DOCX) 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 82



 

1 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 5, 2021 

7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom - Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on April 5, 2021 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White; County Manager Ken Bowman, and Clerk to the 

Board Karen Davis. 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Bill Blake gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

The following addressed the Board with concerns in regard to the Camden Bears Youth Football League: 

 

Britton Overton, longtime resident of Camden and Director of Transportation for Camden County Schools included 

the following in his remarks:   

• His experience with the DHHS restrictions and recommendations in regard to COVID-19 due to his 

position. 

• Disappointment with the Parks & Recreation Department in regard to the Camden Bears Youth Football 

League and the fact that the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board is unaware of the situation. 

• Parks & Recreation Department web site has little to no information.   

• No sports have been offered by the Parks & Recreation Department during COVID. 

• No effort from the Parks & Recreation Department to overcome the challenges presented by COVID-19. 

• Will follow up with an email to the Commissioners, County Manager and Tim White and will appreciate a 

response. 

 

Jennifer White, Camden resident and parent, included the following in her remarks: 

• Has dealt with the many challenges associated with COVID in her workplace, but it’s time to move 

forward. 

• The children should be given the opportunity to play football in Camden. 

 

Christopher Sparks, South Mills Resident and parent, included the following in his remarks: 

• It is hurtful that the team is not allowed to practice on the field and has to go elsewhere to practice. 

• Requested support from the Commissioners for the team leaders and players. 

 

Marcus White, Camden citizen and coach, included the following in his remarks: 

• Encourages his children to take advantage of activities offered throughout the community. 

• For those playing soccer, there are no questions concerning residence, practice times, location of games; 

not so with football. 

• Referenced the Memorandum of Understanding between the Parks & Recreation Department and Board of 

Education.  Mrs. White assists with the program and provided the information requested, including 

insurance and rosters.  The League provided what was required in the MOU and still were not allowed to 

practice on the field.   

• There are no instructions on how to apply for a Category 4 permit and Mr. White requested feedback on 

how to do so. 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

2 
 

Tiffany Cuevas, Camden citizen and parent, included the following in her remarks: 

• The importance of the opportunity for the children to get outside and play sports due to video games and 

remote learning.   

• The importance of the social and physical aspects of being involved in sports. 

 

Commissioner Riggs questioned the Memorandum of Understanding and what had changed.  

 

Mr. Overton explained that there were COVID issues in the fall that prevented the team from playing and that many 

of the guidelines and restrictions have changed.  He was told by Parks & Recreation Director Tim White that the 

Camden Bears could not use the field because the Albemarle Youth League, which is who sanctions the area youth 

sports, was not having a Spring league.  Only 2 organizations were able to put together teams – Pasquotank and 

Camden.  Mr. Overton questioned why once the insurance issue was corrected the team was still not allowed to play.   

Other Tier III organizations are using the facilities that are outside of Camden and Pasquotank.  He feels as though 

the football program was targeted in this situation.   

 

Chairman Tom White stated that the matter will be reviewed. 

 

Nicholas Rhodes, Camden resident and Director of the Camden Bears Youth Football League addressed the Board.  

It was his intent to start conditioning in the summer prior to the start of the season.  After a conversation with Tim 

White, they began taking temperatures and wearing masks.  Due to the Governor’s mandate, conditioning practices 

were shut down.  When the team began conditioning again they were shut down by the Parks & Recreation 

Department due to the players having contact.   The team started again in February and was shut down again 

because of “contact” between the players.  Proof of insurance and nonprofit status was provided and the league 

continued to be shut down.  The League was given a field in Elizabeth City on which to practice and the League is 

now a part of the Hampton Football League in Virginia with no issues.  The desire is for the league to have the 

opportunity to practice at their own facility here in Camden.   

 

Felicia White, Camden resident and parent, has been helping Mr. Rhodes with the program.  On March 9 th, Mrs. 

White had a telephone conversation with Tim White in which Mr. White informed her that the League would no 

longer be able to use the facility as he was in the possession of a 27-second video, taken by a Camden County 

employee in the parking lot, that shows contact between the players.  She stated that was not possible because she 

was present the entire practice.  She requested to see the video and was refused.  Her husband, a football coach, has 

instructed the players on drills that can be practiced safely.  Camden County youth are now required to practice in 

Elizabeth City and should be allowed to play in their home county.  In her observation, soccer games and practices 

are continuing with no masks or distancing.   

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA        

The agenda was amended to add the Drone Program Application Request from the March 1st meeting to New 

Business as Item 6.E. 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 4.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Camden Sheriff’s Office - Brandon Blount announced the Firehouse Subs grant award to the Sheriff’s 

Office of 10 new AED’s.   Every vehicle with the Sheriff’s Office is now equipped with an AED. The 

Sheriff’s Office also recently received a radar/message sign which it acquired through a contest sponsored 

by All Traffic Solutions at no expense to the County. 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

3 
 

 

B. Animal Ordinance Amendment Request – Ms. Cam Smart presented the following request to amend the 

County Animal Ordinance. 

 

  

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

4 
 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

5 
 

 
   

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

6 
 

  

 
 

   

 

   

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

7 
 

 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

8 
 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

9 
 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

10 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

11 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

12 
 

 

 

 
 

Sheriff Kevin Jones addressed the Board concerning Ms. Smart’s request.  The Sheriff’s Office has received several 

complaints in regard to this situation with documentation dating back to May 2020 and could go back farther than 

that; complaints of unsanitary and conditions for the animals which included inadequate water, inadequate shade and 

animal waste in the pen.  The owner was contacted and warned that if conditions did not improve she would be 

charged.  Living conditions have improved.  Sheriff Jones made it clear that these are wolves, not dogs, and 

described their behavior as predatory.  The behavior of the wolves and noise from their howling create a nuisance 

for the neighbors.  He is in support of an amendment to the Animal Ordinance but it needs to be adapted for Camden 

County and enforceable by his Office.   

 

Commissioner Munro questioned if the owner of the animals was present in the meeting.  The owner was not 

present. 

 

Alan & Peggy Coe of Edgewater Drive addressed the Board in support of the request to amend the Animal 

Ordinance.  They support Ms. Smart’s findings and request to amend the Animal Ordinance.  They are concerned 

for their safety and that of their pet.  They also mentioned that the owner is rarely on the property. 

 

Mrs. Coe shared the following written comments from nearby residents who are also in support of amending the 

Animal Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

13 
 

    
 

Commissioner Ross Munro complimented Ms. Smart on a well-prepared and delivered presentation.  Commissioner 

Munro offered a motion to approve the amended ordinance.  After a brief discussion, Commissioner Munro 

amended his motion.  He also requested that the Sheriff enforce the Kennel laws in the meantime.   

 

Motion to direct the Staff to prepare an amended Animal Ordinance for consideration at the June 7, 2021 

meeting. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

C. New High School Progress Report – Rick Ott, M.B. Kahn  

 

  

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

14 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Chairman Tom White confirmed that there should be no issues with seating students for lunches in the proposed 

cafeteria.  Mr. Ott concurred that should not be an issue. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak inquired concerning the size of the current school and the number of classrooms as 

compared to the number of classrooms that will be in the new school.   

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

15 
 

Mr. Ott stated that the current school is less than 80,000 square feet.  He did not have the answer concerning the 

number of classrooms. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak expressed concern in regard to the amount of money this project will cost the taxpayers with 

the inclusion of operating costs.   

 

Mr. Ott stated that the State of North Carolina covers instructional costs, while the County will be responsible for 

costs associated with custodial, maintenance, insurance, etc. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak added that he would like to see the expected total amount of operating costs.   

 

At the conclusion of Mr. Ott’s presentation, Chairman Tom White recessed the meeting for a 10-minute break. 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

At 8:32 PM Chairman Tom White called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – David Credle 

 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

16 
 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

17 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Micro Bar Screen Proposal – David Credle 

 

The Courthouse Area WWTP was built with a standard bar screen with one-inch spacing at the headworks. This 

typical setup works well for most gravity collection systems. The ongoing issue we have is all our flow is delivered 

to the plant by grinder pumps. The grinder pumps cut everything into small particles that aren’t intercepted by the 

bar screen. The small particles collect in the influent tank into a thick mat that covers the entire tank. The paper also 

works its way through the whole treatment process, clogging pipes and chemical feed lines. 

 

The solution to this problem is a Micro Bar Screen. The micro screen has 2mm spacings to trap even the smallest 

particles and a scraper to keep the screen from being clogged. The scrapper brings the materials to the top of the bar 

screen to be collected in a trash can or dumpster as needed. The State requires plans and specifications for the 

installation of the new bar screen which is considered a minor permit modification. Timmons Group has agreed to 

complete the engineering work for the permit modification. The bar screen will fit into the existing tank we have for 

the standard bar screen and only requires a few anchor bolts. The bar screen comes with a control panel, and will 

need electrical power ran from the control panel to the breaker panel. 

 

The cost estimate for this project is $100,000 with $41,000 coming from the current year’s budget and $59,000 

coming from next year’s budget. The lead time for delivery of this equipment is 12-18 weeks.  

 

Motion to approve the purchase of the Micro Bar Screen as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Tom White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 
ITEM 5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS          

 

A. Camden Solar, LLC Amendment Request – Amber Curling 

 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for Camden Solar, LLC Amendment request. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

18 
 

The Special Use Permit (UDO 2017-10-01) for Camden Solar was approved by the Board of Commissioners on 

January 8, 2017.  An Amendment was approved for a one-year extension of Special Use Permit (UDO 2017-10-01) 

for Camden Solar, LLC to expire January 8, 2021.  A building Permit for Construction of the Solar Panels and 

Equipment was issued on October 15, 2020.  Worley, the construction contractor for Camden Solar LLC, is 

requesting an Amendment to the Special Use Permit Condition Number 7, which states the Hours of Operation 

during the construction phase shall be from Monday-Saturday, dawn to dusk.  The Amendment is requesting to 

extend the days of operation to include Sundays.  Wayne Watson was present to represent Worley Group.   

 

  
 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

19 
 

Chairman Tom White called for public comments from those who are opposed to the requested amendment.  There 

were none.   

 

Wayne Watson, site manager for Worley Group addressed the Board.  Mr. Watson explained that the amount of 

rainfall since October has placed construction schedule a month behind.  The request to work on Sunday does not 

necessarily mean there will be crews on site every Sunday; only as needed.  Most of the contractors that are working 

on the site are from Fayetteville and Charlotte.  If Sundays are not available, the workers go home for the weekend.  

The construction is to be completed by early June and complete commissioning in late September or early October.   

There doesn’t seem to be any negative impact to the community.  At the neighborhood meeting no one spoke in 

opposition to the amendment.   

 

Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to add the Amendment Request to the agenda. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to approve the amendment to the hours of operation to include Sunday from dawn to dusk for Special 

Use Permit 2017-10-01. 

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak stated that it is his opinion that historically within the Camden community, citizens 

have been able to enjoy peace and quiet on Sundays.  If this amendment is approved, it will open the door for similar 

requests on future projects.  The construction noise on Sundays could also interfere with church services taking 

place nearby.   

 

RESULT: FAILED [2-3] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Tiffney White 

NOES: Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Ross Munro 

 

B. Avery Shores Rezoning Request  

 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for Avery Shores rezoning request. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Avery Family Trust has requested a map amendment for approximately 52 acres from Planned Development (PD) 

and 37 acres from Working Lands to Suburban Residential (SR).  Both parcels are located off One Mill Rd and 

Riggs Rd in the Shiloh Township.   

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on December 9, 2020.  On January 20, 2021, the Planning Board recommended 

approval of the rezoning request with a 6-0 vote. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future Land Use 

Maps has the majority of property identified as Conservation. 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

20 
 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map which shows the 

current Planned Development Zoning Parcel to be Village Mixed Use. 

 

  
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

21 
 

   
 

Mr. Steven Bradshaw, representing the applicant, addressed the Board and included the following information in his 

remarks: 

Downgrading of the current Planned Unit Development zoning for the northern parcel to Suburban Residential will 

greatly reduce the amount of residential density while the rezoning of the southern parcel from Working Lands to 

Suburban Residential, will provide continuity with the adjacent residential pockets along One Mill Road and Avery 

Drive.  The combination of reduced density, potential for conservation areas and the development of shoreline 

property, will contribute to a lower impact development with less demand on infrastructure while highlighting 

higher valued property.  At the most, there will be one house per acre, which means there would be no more than 90 

homes. Mr. Bradshaw pointed out that his residence is adjacent to the property.  Preliminary testing indicates there 

should not be septic issues.  The cost of the homes to be constructed is estimated at $400K-$450K as they will be on 

waterfront lots.   

 

Chairman Tom White called for public comments. 

 

Mr. Gary Overton of Shiloh spoke in opposition to the rezoning request.  Mr. Overton’s farm is adjacent to this 

property.  His concerns included drainage issues, the potential for trespassing and liability issues, property tax 

impacts, increased noise, lack of infrastructure in the area, emergency services impacts, and potential encroachment 

of property rights. 

 

Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to place Avery Shores Rezoning Request on May 3, 2021 agenda for consideration. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

22 
 

ITEM 6.  NEW BUSINESS          

A. Tax Report – Ken Bowman 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

23 
 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid - Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid - Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

24 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid - Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Board of Equalization and Review – Ken Bowman 

 

Pursuant to G.S. 105-322(c), the hearing dates for the 2021 Board of Equalization and Review need to be set in 

order to advertise the appropriate time. 

 

Motion to convene the Board of Equalization and Review on May 3, 2021 and adjourn on June 7, 2021. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

C. Advertisement of Liens on Real Property – Ken Bowman 

 

Pursuant to G. S. 105-369(a), the Tax Administrator must report to the County Commissioners the total amount of 

unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on real property. 

 

Pursuant to G. S. 105-369(c), the County Commissioners need to set the date for advertising the tax lien for real 

property. 

 

Motion to accept the attached report from the Tax Administrator that, as of March 25, 2021 the total amount 

of unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on Real Property is $271,126.93 and that this figure 

shall change over time with collections and releases and motion to set the 2020 tax liens on Real Property 

advertising date of April 30, 2021. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

D. Finance Policies and Procedures – Ken Bowman 

 

The Camden County Financial Policy was reviewed and updated based on numerous changes in state law and local 

administrative operating procedures. This policy assessment and rewrite was a cover-to-cover review conducted 

totally by in-house staff.  The document in its entirety is on file in the Camden County Finance Office. 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

25 
 

 

Motion to approve the revised Camden County Finance Policy as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

E. Drone Program Request  

 

At the March 1, 2021 meeting, Chief Tommy Banks of the South Mills Volunteer Fire Department requested the 

approval of an application for implementation of a Drone Program.   The decision of the Board was to gather 

additional information and place on the April 5, 2021 agenda for consideration.   

 

Motion to approve the request of the South Mills Volunteer Fire Department to submit an application for the 

Drone Program. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 7.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Planning Board – Appointment of Dave Parks 

 

Motion to table Planning Board appointments for 60 days. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Senior Advisory Board – Reappointments of Dorothy Drake, Patricia Delano and Edith Jennings 

 

Motion to approve the Senior Advisory appointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

C. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board – Reappointment of Alex Leary 

 

Motion to reappoint Alex Leary to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

D. Senior Tarheel Legislature – Appointment of Lynne McLain 

 

Motion to appoint Lynne McLain as the Senior Tarheel Legislative Delegate for Camden County. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

26 
 

ITEM 8.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – March 1, 2021 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes – March 3, 2021 

C. Closed Session Minutes 

D. Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

   

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

27 
 

E. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

28 
 

   
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

29 
 

   
 

F. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

30 
 

G. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

H. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

31 
 

I. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

J. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 
 

K. Surplus Property Requests 

 

Department Item Disposal Method Suggested Value Reason for Surplus 

Public Works 2000 Ford Taurus GovDeals $500 Age, miles, poor 

condition 

Parks & Recreation Rowing Machine GovDeals $20 Old, poor condition 

Parks & Recreation Aerobic Stepper GovDeals $20 Old, not for 

commercial use 

Parks & Recreation Aerobic Rider GovDeals $20 Old, not for 

commercial use 

Parks & Recreation Exercise Bike GovDeals $20 Old 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

32 
 

L. Proclamation – NC 811 Safe Digging Month 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 9.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• BOC Budget Work Session scheduled for April 1, 2021 was very productive.  The next Work Session is 

scheduled for April 29th at 2:00 PM at the library. 

• April is NC811 Safe Digging Month  

• Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – May 3, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

• Be safe and wear your mask. 

 

ITEM 10.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs stated that the new fence at Mill Town Boat Ramp looks nice.   

 
ITEM 11.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

The following reports were submitted for information: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

 

ITEM 12.  OTHER MATTERS          

 

None. 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

33 
 

ITEM 13.  ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Tom White adjourned the meeting at 9:21 PM. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

            

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
05

21
  (

29
72

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 5
, 2

02
1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 116



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
93

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
93

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
93

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
93

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.D

Packet Pg. 121



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

29
87

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 130



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
82

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.F 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV MONTHLY REPORT JUNE, 21 REN (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report June, 21 Renewals Due 7/15/21 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.F

Packet Pg. 132



7.F.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 J

U
N

E
, 2

1 
R

E
N

  (
29

81
 :

 D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.G 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: MARCH, 2021 REFUNDS OVER $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   March, 2021 Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.G

Packet Pg. 134



7.G.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

A
R

C
H

, 2
02

1 
R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

  (
29

91
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.H 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: MARCH, 2021 VTS REFUNDS OVER $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   March, 2021 Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.H

Packet Pg. 136



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

A
R

C
H

, 2
02

1 
V

T
S

 R
E

F
U

N
D

S
 O

V
E

R
 $

10
0.

00
  (

29
92

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.I 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Estimated Property Values 

 

Attachments: Estimated Property Values (PDF) 

 

7.I

Packet Pg. 138



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

st
im

at
ed

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 V

al
u

es
  (

29
94

 :
 E

st
im

at
ed

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 V

al
u

es
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.J 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2020-2021 Audit Contracts 

 

Attachments: Audit Contract_CamdenCounty (PDF) 

Audit Contract_TDA (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Contracts with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Company for County and TDA Audit Contracts 

for 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.J

Packet Pg. 140



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
C

am
d

en
C

o
u

n
ty

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



7.J.b

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t_
T

D
A

  (
29

86
 :

 2
02

0-
20

21
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.K 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   JCPC Funding Plan / Certification 

 

Attachments: JCPC Funding Plan_Certification (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council is nearing 2021-2022 Certification.  The program has 

transitioned to a 2-year funding agreement which will make the next renewal period 2023-2024. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.K

Packet Pg. 161



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



7.K.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 P

la
n

_C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

  (
29

77
 :

 J
C

P
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
la

n
 / 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.L 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Visitor Center Funding Agreement 

 

Attachments: Camden Co agreement9757 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The Dismal Swamp Visitor Center Funding Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the 

County and State based on the State-provided funding. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.L

Packet Pg. 175



Agreement ID #9757 1

NORTH CAROLINA  VISITOR CENTER FUNDING AGREEMENT
CAMDEN COUNTY

DATE:  3/18/2021
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION

WBS: 42931
AND

CAMDEN COUNTY VISITOR CENTER

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the last date executed below, by and between 

the North Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of North Carolina, 

hereinafter referred to as the “Department” and Camden County Visitor Center, hereinafter 

referred to as “County”.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the 2011-2012 General Assembly of the State of North Carolina passed legislation 

providing the Dismal Swamp Canal Visitor Center located on Route 17 in Camden County, certain 

funds for operating costs for the Center in the amount of $142,857; and,

WHEREAS, said funding shall be appropriated annually until such time as General Statutes 20-

79.7(c)(2) and General Statutes 20-85(a1) is modified or deleted, or the General Assembly of the 

State of North Carolina changes or deletes funding for said Visitor Center; and,

WHEREAS, the Department has the responsibility for conveying and monitoring the funds 

appropriated by the General Assembly to the County for the operation of the Visitor Center 

subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth; and,

WHEREAS, administration of these funds shall be by a State chartered nonprofit organization or 

local government agency pursuant to Chapter 752; Senate Bill 44, Section 153(a), 1989 Session 

Laws;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, each in consideration of the promises and undertakings 

of the other as herein provided, do hereby covenant and agree, each with the other, as follows:

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 2

1. OPERATION OF VISITOR CENTER

A. The County shall be responsible for the operation of the Visitor Center and the 

administration of these funds and be responsible for maintaining all records and 

documentation required by the Department’s Fiscal Branch in accordance with the 

Department’s regulations and OMB Circular A-102 for governmental entities.

B. The Visitor Center will be staffed and operated on a reasonable daily year round basis, not 

less than 6 days per week, eight hours per day, to include all holidays except 

Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day.

C. The County will be responsible for cleanup and maintenance of the Visitor Center 

buildings, including all repairs to the interior building, systems and exterior doors, up to a 

maximum of $500 per item. Repairs in excess of $500 will be the responsibility of the 

Department. The Department shall be notified of such repairs prior to the repair being 

completed. Any permanent changes that the County might propose for the interior of the 

building shall be approved by the Division Engineer prior to completion of any work.

D. The County must have prior written approval from the Department before entering into any 

Operating Agreement with another party and such Agreement must include a full 

accounting of the cost of the Agreement and be subject to the same audit requirements as 

the County. 

E. The Secretary of Transportation has reserved the annual sum of $142,857 from the 

Special Registration Plate Account (SRPA) to assist in operating costs for the Visitor 

Center in Camden County.  Upon receipt and approval by the Department’s Financial 

Management Division of an invoice and all other required documents, the Department will 

disburse the payment of that funding to the County in quarterly payments beginning July 1 

annually.  An amendment will be added should this amount change prior to the completion 

of this agreement.

F. The annual funding is expressly for the operating costs of the visitor center.   Attached as 

Exhibit “A” is a list of purposes for which Visitor Center funds can and cannot be used.  

Any unused portion, whether from the County or any subcontracted Agreement, shall be 

reimbursed to the Department.

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 3

2. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS GUIDANCE

A. The County shall submit the following when requesting reimbursement:

I. An invoice, a completed Request for Payment Appropriation and DBE-IS form.  All 

forms and examples referenced in this Agreement are attached.

II. A spread sheet showing Visitor Counts for the most recent calendar year, including a 

month-by-month visitor count and an explanation of how such data was collected.

III. The Visitor Center’s annual budget and operating plan, including a list of all other 

funding sources for the visitor center, the number of employees and volunteers, the 

days and hours of operation, and a training schedule for employees/volunteers.

IV. Copies of any operating or maintenance Agreements entered into as a part of 

operating the visitor center.

V. A Copy of the General Ledger accounting for the previous year’s expenditures in 

Excel format and only for the funding received from the Department.  Other funding 

sources should not be mixed with Department funding or should be clearly labeled as 

such.  This information does not have to be submitted on a yearly basis, but upon 

request by the Department.

B. Standards for allowability of labor and fringe benefit costs shall apply as set forth in Office 

of Management and Budget OMB A-87 (for governmental entities).

C. No additional funds will be paid to the County for any fiscal year for expenditures 

exceeding $142,857.  If the audited approved expenditures for any fiscal year are less 

than $142,857, the County shall refund the difference to the Department within sixty (60) 

days of notification from the Department of monies due. The Department shall charge a 

late payment penalty and interest on any unpaid balance due, in accordance with G.S. 

147-86.23.

3. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND RECORDS RETENTION

PROJECT RECORDS

The County and its agents shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting 

records, Project records and such other evidence as may be appropriate to substantiate 

costs incurred under this Agreement.  Records should be kept in an electronic format and 

backed up in a secure location. Further, the County shall make such materials available at 

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 4

its office and shall require its agent to make such materials available at its office at all 

reasonable times during the contract period, and for three (3) years from the date of 

payment of the final reimbursement by the Department, for inspection and audit by the 

Department’s Financial Management Section.

4. PROCEDURES FOR GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY

The following audit procedures shall be adhered to if the County is a Governmental Entity:

A. The County is subject to the requirements of G.S. 159-34 and the applicable prescribed 

requirements of the Local Government Commission, Office of the State Treasurer.

B. If the County receives, uses, or expends state funds of $500,000 or more during its’ fiscal 

year, it must have a single audit performed in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.  It 

must be approved by the Local Government Commission, Office of State Treasurer.

C. The County shall furnish the Department with a copy of the independent audit report within 

nine (9) months following the end of the fiscal year.  Failure to submit said requested 

documents may result in the withholding of the appropriated funds until such time as said 

documents are received and, in the opinion of the Department, are satisfactory.

5. PROCEDURES FOR NON-PROFIT ENTITY

The following audit procedures shall be adhered to if the County is a Non-Profit Entity:

The County shall comply with all applicable audit and reporting requirements of Title 9, 

Subchapter 2M of the North Carolina Administrative Code (including any subsequent 

amendments or additions to such requirements.  This includes filing with the Department, 

no later than six (6) months after the end of your fiscal year the following forms:

 NGO 0001 State Grant Certification and Sworn Statement.
 NGO 0003 State Grants Compliance Reporting for 25K or more
 NGO 0004 Program Activities and Accomplishments
 NGO 0005 Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures

6. TIME FRAME

Subject to the provisions stated herein, the Agreement becomes effective the date of 

execution, or July 1, 2021 (whichever is later) and remains in effect until June 30, 2024, or 

until cancelled by either party as described herein.  

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 5

This Agreement shall remain active with extensions possible for additional one-year periods, 

up to four (4) years extension through June 30, 2028.  At the end of each one-year renewal 

period, upon written extension, this Agreement shall continue as written or as modified with 

the understanding that the Department and/or the County reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement with a sixty (60) day written notice to the opposite party.

In the event either party to this Agreement should choose to withdraw from this Agreement, 

written notification must be given to the other entity sixty (60) days prior to withdrawal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, failure on the part of 

the County to comply with any of the provisions included in the Agreement or subsequently 

approved Supplemental Agreements will be grounds for the Department to immediately 

terminate its participation in this Agreement without the necessity of the sixty (60) day notice 

period described above.

7. OTHER PROVISIONS

REFERENCES

It will be the responsibility of the County to follow the current and/or most recent edition of 

references, websites, specifications, standards, guidelines, recommendations, regulations 

and/or General Statutes, as stated in this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT

The County agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Department and the State of North 

Carolina, to the extent allowed by law, for any and all claim for payment, damages and/or 

liabilities of any nature, asserted against the Department in connection with this Project.  

The Department shall not be responsible for any damages or claims, which may be 

initiated by third parties.

DEBARMENT POLICY

It is the policy of the Department not to enter into any Agreement with parties that have 

been debarred by any government agency (Federal or State).  By execution of this 

Agreement, the County certifies that neither it nor its agents or contractors are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded 

from participation in this transaction by any Federal or State Agency or Department and 

that it will not enter into Agreements with any entity that is debarred, suspended, proposed 

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 6

for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

transaction.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

All terms and conditions of this Agreement are dependent upon and subject to the 

allocation and appropriation of funds for the purpose set forth in the Agreement, and the 

Agreement shall automatically terminate if funds cease to be available.

USE OF POWELL BILL FUNDS

If the other party to this Agreement is a Municipality and fails for any reason to reimburse 

the Department in accordance with the provisions for payment hereinabove provided, 

NCGS 136-41.3 authorizes the Department to withhold so much of the Municipality’s share 

of funds allocated to Municipality by NCGS 136-41.1, until such time as the Department 

has received payment in full.  

If the other party to this Agreement is a Non-profit and fails for any reason to reimburse the 

Department in accordance with the provisions for payment herein above provided, the 

Department will reduce the amount of the next payment or payments as needed to cover 

the full repayment of funds.

TITLE VI

The other party to this Agreement shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

(Title 49 CFR, Subtitle A, Part 21) and related nondiscrimination authorities.  Title VI and 

related authorities prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, 

disability, gender, and age in all programs or activities of any recipient of Federal 

assistance.

GIFT BAN

By Executive Order 24, issued by Governor Perdue, and N.C. G.S.§ 133-32, it is unlawful 

for any vendor or contractor ( i.e. architect, bidder, contractor, construction manager, 

design professional, engineer, landlord, offeror, seller, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor), 

to make gifts or to give favors to any State employee of the Governor’s Cabinet Agencies 

(i.e., Administration, Commerce, Environmental Quality, Health and Human Services, 

Information Technology, Military and Veterans Affairs, Natural and Cultural Resources, 

Public Safety, Revenue, Transportation, and the Office of the Governor).

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 7

AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended only by written amendments duly executed by both 

parties.

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

A copy or facsimile copy of the signature of any party shall be deemed an original with 

each fully executed copy of the Agreement as binding as an original, and the parties agree 

that this Agreement can be executed in counterparts, as duplicate originals, with facsimile 

signatures sufficient to evidence an agreement to be bound by the terms of the 

Agreement.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and any documents incorporated specifically by reference represent the 

entire Agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral or written statements or 

Agreements.  All documents incorporated by reference are available online for review by 

both parties.  

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed, in duplicate, the day and year 

heretofore set out, on the part of the Department and the County by authority duly given.

ATTEST: CAMDEN COUNTY

BY: ___________________________ BY:  _________________________

TITLE:__________________________   TITLE:________________________

DATE:  ________________________ DATE:_________________________

G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee 
of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business 
with the State.  By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire 
organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been 
offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization. 

This Agreement has been pre-audited in the 
manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.
BY:_________________________________

(FINANCE OFFICER)

(SEAL)

Federal Tax Identification Number

_____________________________

Remittance Address:

Camden County

____________________________

____________________________

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

BY: _____________________________
              (CHIEF ENGINEER)

DATE: ___________________________

PRESENTED TO BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION ITEM O: ________________

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID #9757 1

“EXHIBIT”A”

PURPOSES FOR WHICH VISITOR CENTER FUNDS CAN BE USED ARE:

1. Salaries for labor, supervision, and fringe benefits (not to include bonuses or 
meals) for employees operating and staffing the visitor center facility.

2. Payments to contractors, employment agencies and third parties for the 
operation and staffing of the Visitor Center.

3. Workers Compensation and Liability Insurance and insurance on the 
organizations’ contents for the operation and staffing of the Visitor Center 
facility.

4. Office supplies and expenses such as postage fees, computers, internet, 
telephones, furniture, and audio-visual equipment used in the operation of the 
Visitor Center.

5. Visitor Center building lease or rental fees.
6. Utility services such as telephone, internet, water, sewer, gas/oil, electricity, 

and trash pickup for the Visitor Center.
7. Visitor Center building repairs, maintenance, janitorial and grounds 

maintenance services.
8. Visitor Center advertising and marketing literature, brochures, banners, signs, 

website development and operation.
9. Miscellaneous administrative costs (book keeping, internal and external audits, 

attorney fees) for the Visitor Center.
10.Travel expenses for Visitor Center operation and training, similar to DOC 

Welcome Center Hostess training.
11.Supplies for hosting meetings and promotional activities located at the Visitor 

Center (not to include meals or food and drink of any kind).
12.Banking Fees associated with checking account only for the Visitor Center.  A 

prorated fee associated with a General Fund Checking account with Visitor 
Center funds is not eligible. Banking fees are only eligible if the checking 
account is established only for Visitor Center funds.

13.Payments to contractors for any of the above.

PURPOSES FOR WHICH VISITOR CENTER FUNDS CAN NOT BE USED ARE:

1. Expenditures for activities that are not directly related to the operation of the 
Visitor Center, and/or are not held on the Visitor Center property.

2. If items are questionable, a request for approval from the Department should be 
made prior to expenditure.

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 2

OSBM Form

REQUEST FOR PAYMENT OF APPROPRIATION(S) FROM NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL FUND

(SEE LETTER ENCLOSED)

20__ Allocation:   $             

Purpose:  

Part A.  TO BE COMPLETED BY ALL RECIPIENTS

1. Contact’s Name:                                                              Telephone: 

2. Contact’s Position in Organization:  __________________________________

3. Federal Identification Number __________________

4. Kind of Organization:  Corporation ____     Trust ____     Partnership ____     Government ____
                                                                    Unincorporated Association _____     Other _____

5. Match Required (Circle One):   Yes/No      On a _____ to _____ basis.

If matching is required, is cash match in hand?     Yes _____    No _____

If the required match is not in hand, by what date and from what source does the organization expect to 
have the cash match?

6. Fiscal Year of Non-State Entity (e.g. year ending June 30, December 31, other) 
____________________

===========================================================================
Part B.  TO BE COMPLETED BY ALL NON-GOVERNMENTAL RECIPIENTS

1. Please enclose the following:

a.  Articles of Incorporation and by-laws, trust indenture, partnership agreement, etc.
b.  List of Board of Directors/Trustees.
c.  Policy addressing conflicts of interest.
d.  Sworn Statement of no overdue tax debts.

============================================================================
Part C.  TO BE COMPLETED BY ALL RECIPIENTS.  FORM MUST BE NOTARIZED

___________________________________________
_______________________________________

Signature of individual making request Notary Public (official seal)

_______________________________________
Date Notarized

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 3

Form DBE-IS 

State of North Carolina 
Department of Transportation 

Subcontractor Payment Information 
Submit with Invoice To: Invoice Coordinator 

North Carolina Department of Transportation 
Division / Branch 
Address 
Raleigh, NC XXXXX-XXXX 

 
 

Firm Invoice No. Reference       
NCDOT PO / Contract Number      

WBS No. (State Project No.)       
Date of Invoice      

Signed    
 
 
 

   Amount Paid To Date Paid To 
Subcontractor / Subcontractor / Subcontractor / Subcontractor / 

Invoice Line   Subconsultant/ Subconsultant / Subconsultant / Subconsultant / 
Item  Payer Federal Material Supplier Material Supplier Material Supplier Material Supplier 

Reference Payer Name Tax Id Name Federal Tax Id This Invoice This Invoice 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Amount Paid to Subcontractor Firms  $  
 
 

 
NOTE: - These documents are scanned into our Fiscal program. Please do not highlight or shade the figures. 

 
 

Rev. 10/06 

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 4

State Grant Certification and Sworn Statement 
 
 
 
 

 Entity’s Letterhead 
 

[Date (mmddyyyy)] 
 
To: State Agency Head and Chief Fiscal Officer 
 Office of the State Budget and Management 
 
Certification: 
 
We certify that the accompanying reports represent all financial activity related to the receipt, use, and 
expenditure of funds granted by the State of North Carolina to   [insert organization’s name]     for the 
fiscal year ended __________ (mmddyyyy) and that the expenditures reported were for the purposes 
appropriated by the General Assembly or collected by the State of North Carolina and in compliance 
with the applicable laws, regulations, and terms and conditions of the grant documents. 
 
The accompanying reports are presented on the cash basis of accounting and are supported by our 
financial records. 
 
We understand that if it is found the expenditures reported were not used for the purpose(s) 
appropriated, that the grantor agency shall report such findings to the Attorney General, the Office of 
State Budget and Management, the Office of the State Auditor, and the Office of the State Controller.  
Any apparent violations of a criminal law or malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance in connection 
with the use of State funds shall be reported by the Office of State Budget and Management to the 
Attorney General and State Bureau of Investigation. 
 
Sworn Statement: 
 
[Name of the Treasurer] and [Name of Second Authorizing Official] being duly sworn, say that we are 
the Treasurer and [Title of the Second Authorizing Official], respectively, of [insert name of 
organization] of [City] in the State of [Name of State]; and that the foregoing certification is true, 
accurate and complete to the best of our knowledge and was made and subscribed by us.  We also 
acknowledge and understand that any misuse of State funds will be reported to the appropriate 
authorities for further action. 
 

______________________________ 
Treasurer 
______________________________ 
[Title of Second Authorizing Official] 

 
Sworn to and subscribed before me on the day of the date of said certification. 
 
 
_______________________________                             My Commission Expires: __________ 
(Notary Signature and Seal) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If there are any questions, please contact the state agency that provided your grant. 
jpitts@ncdot.gov 

NCDOT Roadside Environmental Unit 
919-707-2932 

NGO 0001

State Grants Compliance Reporting ≥ $25,000

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 5

Each grantee receiving at least $25,000 should complete the basic information requested here relative to 
the organization, as well as the accounting for State funds received, used or expended, and a description 
of activities and accomplishments undertaken by the grantee with the State funds.  

1. Organization:
Organization Name:
Tax Identification #:
Organization Fiscal Year End:  
(mmddyyyy)
Mailing Address 
(street, city, state, zip code):
Phone Number 
(area code + number):
Fax Number 
(area code + number):
Contact Person:
Contact Person Title:
E-Mail Address:

2. Preparer: [PLEASE INDICATE WHO PREPARED THIS INFORMATION BY CHECKING] Employee CPA/Accountant
Name of Preparer:
Phone Number:

3. Please provide a list of the Organization’s Board Members. [ADD ADDITIONAL PAGES, IF NEEDED]

Name of Board Member Board Member Title

G.S. 143-6.2 (repealed June 30, 2007), G.S. 143C-6-23 (effective July 1, 2007) and the North 
Carolina Administrative Code 09 NCAC 03M requires that every non-State entity that receives, 
uses, or expends any State funds shall use or expend the funds only for the purposes for which 
they were appropriated, and that the grantee must have a Conflict of Interest Policy.  Please 
answer the following questions:

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 6

4. What restrictions are placed upon the grant by the grant award document? If the grant award 
document does not identify specific restrictions, please identify the intended use of the grant funds as 
included in the award document.

Restrictions:

5. Does the organization have a Conflict of Interest policy?  Ye
s

no

6. Is the organization a for profit entity? Ye
s

no

G.S. 143-6.2 (repealed June 30, 2007), G.S. 143C-6-23 (effective July 1, 2007) and the North 
Carolina Administrative Code 09 NCAC 03M requires that every non-State entity that receives, 
uses, or expends any State funds shall use or expend the funds only for the purposes for which 
they were appropriated, and if the grantee then subgrants or pass any or part of those funds to 
another organization, then the grantee must also pass on the reporting requirements to the 
subgrantee.  Please answer the following questions:
7. Did the organization subgrant or pass down any funds to another organization?   Yes no
If yes, answer the following:
a.   Name of Subgrantee b.  Program Name c.  Amount Subgranted

8. Program Activities and Accomplishments:
Recipient must complete and submit a separate Program Activities and Accomplishments Report, 
detailing the program name, the original goals of each program, and a brief narrative of program 
accomplishments for each funded program.  This information is required of all recipients of state funding 
in an amount greater than or equal to $25,000.

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 7

If there are any questions, please contact the state agency that provided your grant.

jpitts@ncdot.gov

NCDOT Roadside Environmental Unit

919-707-2932                                       NGO 0003

Program Activities and Accomplishments Report

Grantee Name:

Grantee Tax ID #

Program Name:

Project/Activity Title:

Grantee’s Fiscal Year End: 
(mmddyyyy)

Date of This Report:

Preparer of This Report:

In compliance with the requirements of G.S. 143-6.2, Use of State Funds by Non-State Entities, (repealed June 30, 2007) 
and G.S. 143C-6-23, State grant funds: administration, oversight and reporting requirements, (effective July 1, 2007), the 
following is a description of activities and accomplishments undertaken by our organization using the provided state 
funding.

Each grantee receiving at least $25,000 should complete the basic information requested here relative to the organization, 
and a description of activities and accomplishments undertaken by the grantee with the State funds.  

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)

mailto:jpitts@ncdot.gov


Agreement ID # 9757 8

1. What were the original goals and expectations for the activity supported by this grant?  

2. If applicable, how have those goals and expectations been revised or refined during the course of the project?

3. What has the activity accomplished with these grant funds?  Please include specific information including 
facts and statistics to support conclusions and judgments about the activity’s impact.

4. If the activity is a continuing one, briefly summarize future plans and funding prospects.

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



Agreement ID # 9757 9

If there are any questions, please contact the state agency that provided your grant.

jpitts@ncdot.gov

NCDOT Roadside Environmental Unit

919-707-2932

NGO 0004

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures 
(≥ $25,000 but < $500,000)

Each grantee receiving at least $25,000 should complete the basic information requested here relative to 
the organization, as well as the accounting for State funds received, used or expended.  

9. Organization:
Organization Name:
Tax Identification #:
Organization Fiscal Year End:  
(mmddyyyy)
Mailing Address 
(street, city, state, zip code):
Phone Number 
(area code + number):
Fax Number 
(area code + number):
Contact Person:
Contact Person Title:
E-Mail Address:

a. Receipts
Funding State Agency Grant Title Total Receipts

b. Expenditures
Category Dollar Amount

Personnel
Contracted Services 
(a)Total Personnel/Contracted Srvcs Costs:
Office Supplies & Materials 
Service Related Supplies 
(b)Total Supplies & Material Costs:
Travel 
Communications & Postage 
Utilities 
Printing & Binding 
Repair & Maintenance 
Meeting/Conference Expense 
Employee Training (no travel) 
Classified Advertising 
In-State Board Meeting Expenses 
(c)Total Non-Fixed Operating Expense:

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)

mailto:jpitts@ncdot.gov


Agreement ID # 9757 10

Office Rent (Land, Buildings, etc.) 
Furniture Rental 
Equipment Rental (Phones, Computers, etc.)
Vehicle Rental
Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance & Bonding
Books/Library Reference Materials
Mortgage Principal, Interest and Bank Fees
(d)Total Fixed Charges & Other Expenses:
Buildings & Improvements
Leasehold Improvements
Furniture/Non-Computer Equip., $500+ per item
Computer Equipment/Printers, $500+ per item
Furniture/Equip., under $500 per item
(e)Total Property & Equipment Outlay:
Purchase of Services
Contracts with Service Providers
Stipends/Scholarships/Bonuses/Grants
(f)Total Services/Contracts:
Food
Other (provide description here): 
______________________________
Other (provide description here): 
______________________________
Other (provide description here): 
______________________________
Other (provide description here): 
______________________________
(g)Total Other Expenses:
Total Expenditures (sum a through g)

Unexpended cash balance (do NOT use with reimbursement grants)

Beginning of the year cash balance
End of the year cash balance

NOTE:  If total receipts, expenditures, beginning or ending unexpended grant balance 
available for expenditures is $500,000 or more, an audit is required by G.S. 143C-6-23.

If there are any questions, please contact the state agency that provided your grant.

jpitts@ncdot.gov

NCDOT Roadside Environmental Unit

919-707-2932

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)

mailto:jpitts@ncdot.gov


Agreement ID # 9757 11

NGO 0005

7.L.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 a

g
re

em
en

t9
75

7 
 (

29
95

 :
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

te
r 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

re
em

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.M 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proclamation - Older Americans Month 

 

Attachments: Proclamation_Older Americans Month (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the Albemarle Commission's Area Agency on Aging that the Board of 

Commissioners adopt the attached Proclamation recognizing May 2021 as Older Americans 

Month in Camden County. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.M

Packet Pg. 195



 
Older Americans Month 2021 

A PROCLAMATION 
 

Whereas, Camden County includes a growing number of older Americans who have built 

resilience and strength over their lives through successes and difficulties; and  

 

Whereas, Camden County benefits when people of all ages, abilities, and backgrounds are 

included and encouraged to share their successes and stories of resilience; and 

 

Whereas, Camden County recognizes our need to nurture ourselves, reinforce our strength, 

and continue to thrive in times of both joy and difficulty; and 

 

Whereas, Camden County can foster communities of strength by:  

• creating opportunities to share stories and learn from each other; 

• engaging older adults through education, recreation, and service; and 

• encouraging people of all ages to celebrate connections and resilience. 

 

Now, therefore, we the Camden County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim  

May 2021 to be Older Americans Month. We urge every resident to recognize older adults 

and the people who support them as essential contributors to the strength of our community. 

 

Proclaimed this the 3rd day of May 2021. 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

7.M.a

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

_O
ld

er
 A

m
er

ic
an

s 
M

o
n

th
  (

29
73

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 O

ld
er

 A
m

er
ic

an
s 

M
o

n
th

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.N 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendments 160D 

 

Attachments: AGENDA SUMMARY Chapter 160D changes BOC

 (DOCX) 

 
Agenda summary and recommendation attached. 

7.N

Packet Pg. 197



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   May 3, 2021 

 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2021-05-01 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Zoning Text Amendments to comply with GS 160D 

 

 

Summary: 

 

The proposed ordinance presents several text changes to the Camden County Unified development 

Ordinance (UDO).  The changes are necessary to comply with a new state law embodied in General 

Statute 160D. 

 

Chapter 160D is a new chapter in the General Statutes that consolidates the land use regulations found in 

GS 153A (for counties) and Chapter 160A (for municipalities), reorganizes the regulations, and 

incorporates into law the many court decisions handed down over the years since the initial laws were 

written. The deadline for cities and counties to make the necessary changes to comply with the new law 

is July 1, 2021. 

 

The new chapter is the result of over 4 years of drafting and submitting to the legislature by the NC Bar 

Association, NC Homebuilders Association, UNC School of Government, the NC Chapter of the 

America Planning Association, and reviewed by planners and lawyers from around the state. 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

• Set Public Hearing for June 7, 2021. 

 

7.N.a

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

G
E

N
D

A
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 C
h

ap
te

r 
16

0D
 c

h
an

g
es

 B
O

C
  (

29
96

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 1
60

D
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.O 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - 2021-2025 Capital Improvement 

Program 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for June 7, 2021. 

Recommendation: 

Set hearing date. 

7.O

Packet Pg. 199



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.P 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - FY 2021-2022 Budget 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for FY 2021-2022 Budget as required by NCGS 159-12(b) for June 7, 2021. 

Recommendation: 

Set hearing date. 

7.P

Packet Pg. 200



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 201



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
29

71
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
29

71
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.B 

Meeting Date:   May 03, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Board Report 3/2021 

 

Attachments: 21-03 (DOCX) 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 204



Camden County Public Library 

MARCH 2021 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 788 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 2,520 

Computer/ Wireless Use 101/235 

Questions Answered 338 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 1/54 

Adult Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 4/35 

Days/Hours Open 24/192 

# Items in Collection 19,505 

Library Card Holders 2,675 

Curbside Pickups 12 

 

Comparison by Year 

2019-2021 

  
           

 

 

 

1806

1463

788

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2019 MAR 2020 MAR 2021 MAR

Attendance

3671

2149

2520

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2019 MAR 2020 MAR 2021 MAR

Circulation

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

1-
03

  (
29

85
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 B
o

ar
d

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Marc O'Neal - Camden United Methodist Church

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	A. 2998 : New Personnel Introductions - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2998 : New Personnel Introductions - Ken Bowman

	B. 2984 : Tourism Development Authority - Sarah Hill
	Printout: 2984 : Tourism Development Authority - Sarah Hill
	a. Camden TDA- NTTW 2021

	C. 2980 : Economic Improvement Council - Dr. Landon Mason
	Printout: 2980 : Economic Improvement Council - Dr. Landon Mason


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. New Business
	A. 2990 : Tax Report
	Printout: 2990 : Tax Report
	a. Mar2021 monthly report

	B. 2988 : Camden County Board of Elections - Purchase of Voting Equipment
	Printout: 2988 : Camden County Board of Elections - Purchase of Voting Equipment
	a. Board of Elections Voting Equipment Purchase

	C. 2989 : Termination of State of Emergency - COVID-19
	Printout: 2989 : Termination of State of Emergency - COVID-19
	a. Termination of SOE_COVID

	D. 2997 : Avery Shores Rezoning Request - Amber Curling
	Printout: 2997 : Avery Shores Rezoning Request - Amber Curling
	a. 20210503_AgendaSummary_AveryRezoning
	b. 1_StaffReport_AverytRezoning
	c. 2_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	d. 3_SitePlan
	e. 4_Zoning Comparision PD & WL to SR
	f. 5_NeighborhoodMeetingInformation
	g. 6_Deed
	h. 8_CAMA_LUP Amendment Resolution
	i. OrdinanceForAveryRezoning_2021_04_05


	6. Board Appointments
	A. 2976 : Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council
	Printout: 2976 : Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council
	a. Gwen Wescott - Regional Advisory Council

	B. 2975 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 2975 : Tourism Development Authority
	a. TDA- Volunteer Form- Michele Barkhurst

	C. 2974 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	Printout: 2974 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board


	7. Consent Agenda
	A. 2970 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2021
	Printout: 2970 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2021
	a. bocminutes_040121

	B. 2972 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 5, 2021
	Printout: 2972 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 5, 2021
	a. bocminutes_040521

	C. 2993 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2993 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendments

	D. 2987 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2987 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	E. 2982 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2982 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	F. 2981 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2981 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV MONTHLY REPORT JUNE, 21 REN

	G. 2991 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2991 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. MARCH, 2021 REFUNDS OVER $100.00

	H. 2992 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2992 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. MARCH, 2021 VTS REFUNDS OVER $100.00

	I. 2994 : Estimated Property Values
	Printout: 2994 : Estimated Property Values
	a. Estimated Property Values

	J. 2986 : 2020-2021 Audit Contracts
	Printout: 2986 : 2020-2021 Audit Contracts
	a. Audit Contract_CamdenCounty
	b. Audit Contract_TDA

	K. 2977 : JCPC Funding Plan / Certification
	Printout: 2977 : JCPC Funding Plan / Certification
	a. JCPC Funding Plan_Certification

	L. 2995 : Visitor Center Funding Agreement
	Printout: 2995 : Visitor Center Funding Agreement
	a. Camden Co agreement9757

	M. 2973 : Proclamation - Older Americans Month
	Printout: 2973 : Proclamation - Older Americans Month
	a. Proclamation_Older Americans Month

	N. 2996 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendments 160D
	Printout: 2996 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendments 160D
	a. AGENDA SUMMARY Chapter 160D changes BOC

	O. 2979 : Set Public Hearing - 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Program
	Printout: 2979 : Set Public Hearing - 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Program

	P. 2978 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2021-2022 Budget
	Printout: 2978 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2021-2022 Budget


	8. County Manager's Report
	9. Commissioners' Reports
	10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 2971 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2971 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 2985 : Library Board Report
	Printout: 2985 : Library Board Report
	a. 21-03


	11. Other Matters
	12. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 2998 : New Personnel Introductions - Ken Bowman
	4.B · 2984 : Tourism Development Authority - Sarah Hill
	4.B.a · Camden TDA- NTTW 2021

	4.C · 2980 : Economic Improvement Council - Dr. Landon Mason
	5.A · 2990 : Tax Report
	5.A.a · Mar2021 monthly report

	5.B · 2988 : Camden County Board of Elections - Purchase of Voting Equipment
	5.B.a · Board of Elections Voting Equipment Purchase

	5.C · 2989 : Termination of State of Emergency - COVID-19
	5.C.a · Termination of SOE_COVID

	5.D · 2997 : Avery Shores Rezoning Request - Amber Curling
	5.D.a · 20210503_AgendaSummary_AveryRezoning
	5.D.b · 1_StaffReport_AverytRezoning
	5.D.c · 2_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	5.D.d · 3_SitePlan
	5.D.e · 4_Zoning Comparision PD & WL to SR
	5.D.f · 5_NeighborhoodMeetingInformation
	5.D.g · 6_Deed
	5.D.h · 8_CAMA_LUP Amendment Resolution
	5.D.i · OrdinanceForAveryRezoning_2021_04_05

	6.A · 2976 : Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council
	6.A.a · Gwen Wescott - Regional Advisory Council

	6.B · 2975 : Tourism Development Authority
	6.B.a · TDA- Volunteer Form- Michele Barkhurst

	6.C · 2974 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	7.A · 2970 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2021
	7.A.a · bocminutes_040121

	7.B · 2972 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 5, 2021
	7.B.a · bocminutes_040521

	7.C · 2993 : Budget Amendments
	7.C.a · Budget Amendments

	7.D · 2987 : School Budget Amendments
	7.D.a · School Budget Amendments

	7.E · 2982 : Tax Collection Report
	7.E.a · Tax Collection Report

	7.F · 2981 : DMV Monthly Report
	7.F.a · DMV MONTHLY REPORT JUNE, 21 REN

	7.G · 2991 : Refunds Over $100.00
	7.G.a · MARCH, 2021 REFUNDS OVER $100.00

	7.H · 2992 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	7.H.a · MARCH, 2021 VTS REFUNDS OVER $100.00

	7.I · 2994 : Estimated Property Values
	7.I.a · Estimated Property Values

	7.J · 2986 : 2020-2021 Audit Contracts
	7.J.a · Audit Contract_CamdenCounty
	7.J.b · Audit Contract_TDA

	7.K · 2977 : JCPC Funding Plan / Certification
	7.K.a · JCPC Funding Plan_Certification

	7.L · 2995 : Visitor Center Funding Agreement
	7.L.a · Camden Co agreement9757

	7.M · 2973 : Proclamation - Older Americans Month
	7.M.a · Proclamation_Older Americans Month

	7.N · 2996 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendments 160D
	7.N.a · AGENDA SUMMARY Chapter 160D changes BOC

	7.O · 2979 : Set Public Hearing - 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Program
	7.P · 2978 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2021-2022 Budget
	10.A · 2971 : Register of Deeds Report
	10.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	10.B · 2985 : Library Board Report
	10.B.a · 21-03



